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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statemerrts of Keshava Plantations Private Limited ["the
Company"J, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,t2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including

Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow'Statement

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,20l3 ("the Act"J in the manner so

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies flndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20L5, as amended, ["Ind
AS"J and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Cornpany as at
March 3L,2022, and its loss, total comprehensive Income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified

under section 143[10) of the Act [SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAIJ together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial sLatements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethicai responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statement.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including annexure to the Board's Report
& other Shareholder's Information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other ilrformation and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we

have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard
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Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134[5J of the Act with respect

to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial

performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting

Standards [In ASJ specified under section 1 3 3 of the Act read with (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2 0 1 5, as

amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudenU and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative butto do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identiff and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(il of the Companies Act 2013, we are also

responsible for expressing our opinion on rvhether the Company has adequate internal financial controls

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accouittiug estimates

and related disclosures made by management.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use ofthe going concern basis ofaccounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that individually or in aggregate,

makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements

may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (iil to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identiff during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's ReportJ Order, 2020 ("the Order"J, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section [11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "AnnexureA "a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3J of the Act, we report that:

(aJ We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[b) In our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by Iaw have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination ofthose books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash FIow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in

.. agreement with the books of account;

[d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply wit] the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended from time to time;

[e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,,2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 12) of the Act;

(0 With respect to the adequ acy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statement of
the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report;

(g) The Company has not paid/ provided for managerial remuneration during the year.
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(hJ With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule LL of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 20L4, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending Iitigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable Iosses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (aJ The management has represented to us that to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested feither from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person[sJ or entity[ies),
including foreign entities ["lntermediaries"J, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly Iend or invest in otler
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ["Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the company from any personfs) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties"J, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party f"Ultimate Beneficiaries") or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on our audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) as provided under paragraph 2(hJ
(iv)(aJ &(bJ above, contain any material mis-statement.

v. The Company has not declared any dividend in last year which has been paid in current year.
Further, no dividend has been declared in current year. Accordingly, the provision of section !23 of
the Act is not applicable to the company.

ForlKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.3 1B0B6E
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Utsav Saraf

Partner
Memhership No. 306932
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on 0ther Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of
our Report to the members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited of even date)

In respect of the Company's fixed assets;

[a) IAJ The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Properff, Plant and Equipment.

[B] The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the Management according to a
phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the Property, Plant and equipment has been physically
verified by the Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

[cJ According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets during
the year.

II

Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 19BB (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami
Transactions (ProhibitionJ Act, 1988 (45 of 19BBJ) and Rules made thereunder, and therefore
the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the
details in its standalone financial statements does not arise.

[a) According to information and explanation given to us, inventories were physically verified during
the year by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess
of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iil (b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not made any investment provided any security and guarantee or granted any
Ioans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms and limited
Iiability partnership or any other parties covered. Accordingly, report under clause [iii] [a) to [fJ of
the Order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any investment, provided any security and guarantee or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured during the year in respect of which provision of section 185 and
L86 are applicable and accordingly the requirement to report on clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted deposits from public within the meaning of section 73,7 4,75,7 6 of the
Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified

llt
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The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of any cost records under Section 1aB (1)
of The Company Act,201.3.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
books of account, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Goods
and Services Tax, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, no undisputed statutory dues as above were outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

bJ According to the information and explanations given to us and records of Company examined by us,
tle dues of sales tax, income tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, service tax and value added tax which
have not been deposited on account ofany dispute.

According to information and explanations given to us, Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1.96L, as income during the year'. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viiiJ of the
Order is not applicable.

[a) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender including the loans and interest are
repayable on demand.

[bJ According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us including representation received from the management, the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any banh financial institution or other lenders or government or any
Government authority.

(c] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the managemen!
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, prima facie, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has no subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix) (el and (fJ of the Order is not
applicable^

[a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instrumentsJ Accordingly, clause 3[xJ(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private piacement of shares
or convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause [x) [b] of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xi) (a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (L2) of
Section 1.43 of the Companies Acg 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule L3 of Companies (Audit and AuditorsJ Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

cJ Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per Companies Acg 2013.

ix

xi
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xtv.

(bJWe have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audi! issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 20L3 are not applicable to the
Company.

xvr. [a) The provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1,934 (2 of 1,934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause [xvi) [aJ of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(bJ In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration [CoR) from the Reserve Bank oflndia as per the Reserve Bank oflndiaAct, 1934.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company [CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3 (xviJ (cJ of the Order is not applicable.

[d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group
does not have more than one CIC.

xvii. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, The Company has
incurred cash losses of Rs. 81.74 Lakh in the current financial year and in the immediately p.ucldi.rg
financial year there was no cash loss.

xviii. There has heen no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, provisions of
clause (xviiiJ of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix. The Company has incurred losses in the current year and the Company's current tiabilities exceed its
current assets as at 3l- March 2022 by INR. 868.29 Lakh. According to the information and
explanations given to us, on the basis ofthe financial ratlos, ageing and exp6cted dates ofrealization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other inforimation accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans as liven ii Note 56.2.1..d
of Financial Statements which causes us to believe that no mateiial uncertainty elists as on the date of
the audit_ report in relation to company's capability of meeting its liabilitiei existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one yeir from the balance sh"eet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we ,.ith.. give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balancb
sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

contd.

In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly reporting under clanse (xiiJ [aJ to (c)
of the order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 1BB of the Companies Act,201-3 where applicable, for all transactions
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a)Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of section L35 of the Companies Act is not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 (xx) (a) and (b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

As explained by the management, the company does not have subsidiary, associate and Joint venture,
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3 [xxiJ of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForlKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm 's Registration No. 31B0B6E

Llqaed go8'+'
Utsav Saraf

Partner
Membership No. 306932

UDIN: 2 2306932AMFFMU 97 30
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Date: 1lthMay,2022
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (fJ under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements" section of our
Report to the members of Keshava Plantations Private Limited of even dateJ

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Keshava Plantations Private Limited
("the Company") as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act,201-3.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and
deemed to be prescribed under section 143[10J of the Companies Ac! 201,3, to the extent applicable to an audit
ofinternal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit ofinternal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgmeng including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due tofraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

- "i's-.
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MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that [1J pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2J provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over firrancial reporting including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the lnternal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by ICAL

ForlKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm 's Registration No. 31B0B6E
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Utsav Saraf

Partner
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KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRIVATE IIMITED
ct N No. U 01 132AS 19919PTC005655

BALANCE SHEET as at 3tst Mareh, ZOZZ

(t in Lakhs)

illote No. As at 31st March,2022 As at 31st March,2O2l

1

a

b

c

d

e

ASSETS

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipment
Ca pital Work-l n-Progress

lntangible Assets

I ntangible Assets under Development
Finaneial Assets

i 0ther Financial Assets

Other Non Current Assets

Non-Current Tax Assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Biological Asset other than Bearer plants

lnventories

Financial Assets

i Trade Receivables

ii Cash and Cash Equivalents

iii Loans

iv OtherFinancialAssets

Other Current Assets

Tota! Assets

5

6

7

8

I,6

10

11

L2

13

L4

15

9

15

10

2,341.4L

22,08

5.79

28.89

0.59

19.02

2,344.94

59 "22
4,75

2,34

26.23

1.n 0

17.51

2

a

b

c

6.44

102.4s

14.08

10.86

0.88

1.89

92.s2

2,4t7.78

229.L2

2.s2

172.27

4.31

1.90

0.96

1.52

75.22

2,456.09

258.70

EQUITY AND IIABILITIES

EQUITY

a Equity Share Capital

b Other Equity

LIABILITIES

1 NON.CURRENTLIABILITIES

a FinancialLiabilities

i Borrowings

b Provisions

c Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

d Other Non Current Liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings

ii Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of creditors to

_ micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditor to other
than micro enterprises and small

enterprises

iii Other Financial Liabilities

Provisions

Other Current Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

t7
18

19

23

20

24

19

2t

80.00

L,LgL,24 t,261,24

288.2s

80.00
1,336.35

2,714.79

1,416.35

305,19

993.25

39.s0

L21.28

106.90

20.s7

51.7 4

131.15

LLz,57

9.73

22

23

24

952,7 4

1.03

37.43

59.s5

28.81

17.85

824,LT

10.95

45.83

71.02

25.72

15.521,097.4t

2,646.90

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

2,714,79

Basis of preparation and presentation of z

Significant Accounting Policies 3

Significant Judgements & Key Estimates 4

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.

For and on behalf of

JKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 318086E

tA*osos-.lb-'
Utbav Saraf

(Partner)

Membership No. 306932

Kolkata

Dated: 11th May,2022

J

2,646.90
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Director



KESHAVA PLAruTNTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999PTC005666

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS for the year ended 31st March ,2022

For the year ended
3tst March ,2022INCOME

Revenue from Operations
Other lncome

Total lncome

EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished Goods, Stock-ln-Trade and
Work-in-Progress

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before Exceptional ltems and Tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit before Tax

Tax Expense:

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive lncome
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

lncome tax relating to these items

other Comprehensive lncome for the Year (Net of Tax)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the period

Earnings Per Share

Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statement

Significant Accounti ng Policies

Significant Judgements & Key Estimates

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

As per our report of even date annexed.

For and on behalf of
JKVS&CO
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 31.8086E

U Al'..e4, S"r-+ '

Utsav Saraf

(Pa rtner)

Membership No. 306932

Kolkata

Dated: 11.th May,2022

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

L,034"39

20.39

L,054.V6

39.92

79.6L

64L.71

95.94
94.98

280,32

t,23L,49

(L76._721

|.L76.721

(9.81)

(165.91)

15.94

(4.L4].

11.90

(155.11)

(208.64)

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(t in Lakhs)

For the year ended

31st March ,2021
992.L2

5.L4

997 "26

30.96

(115.49)

569.00

93.81.

98.48

264.79

94L.45

55"81

55.81

(32.96)

88.77

(20.63)

5.35

(r5.271

73.50

1.10.96

2

3

4

.ft^*^J
Sharad Bagree

Director
^)>
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE TIIUITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022
(Amount in T ), Farticulars 202't -2022 2020-2021

Amount Amount Amount Amount
A)

B)

c)

IVITIES

r than bearer plant

ritten back

efined beneft obligation
t and Equipment

Emges

s

ancial Assets & Other Assets

Other Liability
i Increase/(Decrease) inProvision

Cash Generated from Operations
Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refund received (Net)

Net Cash from operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of Property,Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets including CWIP / Capital
Advances

Sale of Property,Plant and Equipment Assets

Interest Received

Net casl'r used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Non Current Borrowings

Repayments of Non Current Borrowings
(Repayments)/Proceeds from Short Term /Other Borrowings
Interest paid

Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance

94"98

(1.95)

(3.e3)

95.94

(3.54)

15"94

1"41

t176.72)

198.85

98.48

(1,.76\

(2.52)

93"81

(0"53)

(20.63)

9"67

55.81

176.42

22.\3

29.37

232.23

(e2.13)

(54.ee)

0.57

1.95

51.50

(1.51)

(86.74)

1.35

7.76

140.10

(4.rs1

49.99 135.15

8.99

(10.64)

11.8.04

(104.es)

1,90

10.96

(52.471

58.00

(1,.76],

(21.08)

(e3.s1)

8.73

1.90

(83.63)

(2.481 51.52

11.44 (s8.3s)

8.96 (6.83)

Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents corsists of cash on Hand and balances with bar*s in current / Cash Credit accounts as per note 3.2
2 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary

3 Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Particulars 2021,-22 2020-21

Cash on hand

Bank Balance
0.66

10.20

7.66

0.24

Total 10.86 1.90

The above Cash Flows have been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set ourt in Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

UIqaQd S.^^.h ww
Sayansi

Director
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2.1

KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE TIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3lst March, 2022

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

Keshava Plantations Private Limited was incorporated as a Private Limited Company in lndia under the Companies Act 1956.
It is a wholly owned subsidiary of Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited. Since 2016, the Company has been under the
management of the Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited. The Company's principal business is manufacturing of Tea.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FTNANCIAL STATEMENT

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS") as prescribed
by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation requirements of Division ll of
Schedule lll to the Companies Act 2013, (lND AS Compliant Schedule lll), as applicable to the financial statements and other
relevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in lndia.

The financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022has been approved by the Board of Directors
in their meeting held on LLthMav,2022.

Basis of Measurement

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for followings:

fi nancial instruments);

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in lndian Rupee (lNR), which is the functional currency of the Company and the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in INR
has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schedule lll, unless otherwise stated.

Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires judgements, estimates and assumptions to be
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual
results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known/ materialized.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the
Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per
the requirements of lnd AS 7 "Statement of Cash flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance
Sheet arfri Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming
part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended).

2.2

2.6 Operating Cycle for current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Schedule lllto the Companies Act, 2013 and lnd AS 1. The Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-

An asset is classified as current when it is:

after the reporting period.

2.

2.3

2.4

2.5
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KESHAVA PI"ANTATIONS PRIVATE LIM ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March, 2022

All the other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current., Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities respectively.

Measurement of Fair Values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

directly or indirectly; and

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets & liabilities. lnvolvement of external valuers is decided by
the management of the company considering the requirements of lnd AS and selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement- Standard issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23,2022,
MCA amended the Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below-

o lnd AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net
sale proceedsof items produced overthe costof testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the
profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an

item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is

annual periods beginning on or after April7,2022.

o lnd AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - The amendment
specifies that the 'cost of fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the
contract'. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIM ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l't March, 2022

directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effective date
for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, although
early adoption is permitted.

o lnd AS 103 - Reference to Conceptual Framework The amendments specify that to qualify
for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting under lndian Accounting Standards (Conceptual

Framework) issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia at the acquisition date.

These changes do not significantly change the requirements of lnd AS 103.

o lnd AS 109 - Annual lmprovements to lnd AS (2021) The amendment clarifies which fees

an entity includes when it applies the '10 percent' test of lnd AS 109 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability.

o lnd AS 106 -Annual lmprovements to lnd AS (2021) The amendments remove the
illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve

any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of
how lease incentives were described in that illustration.

The company has evaluated the above amendments and there is no material impact on its financial statement.

3.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below.
These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

INVENTORIES

lnventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost is measured by including, unless specifically

mentioned below, cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition. NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

gardens, is measured at fair value less cost to sell at the point of harvest of tea leaves. Cost of other raw materials is

measured on weighted average basis.

realizable value whichever is lower.

cost'

value. Cost is arrived at by adding the cost of conversion to the fair value of agricultural produce. Other finished goods

are measured at cost or NRV whichever is lower.

CASH AND CASH EqUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short term deposits with an original

maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, term deposits and other

short-term highly liquid investments, net of bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash

management. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in the balance sheet.

3,2



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LI MITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31't March,2022

3.3 INCOME TAX

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit & loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. ln this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.3.1 CurrentTax:

Current tax liabilities (or assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to
(recovered from) the taxation authorities using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enactecl,
at the end ofthe reporting period.

3.3.2 Deferred Tax

is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end ofthe reporting period.

for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes (i.e., tax base). Deferred
tax is also recognized for carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized.

carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable protit will be
available to allow the benefit of part or that entire deferred tax asset to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available,

comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlatiorr to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

current tax liabilities and when they relate to incorne taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Conrpany
intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3,4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EqUIPMENT

3.4.1 Taneible Assets (Other than Bearer Pla,ntgl

3.4.1.1 Recognitionand Measurement:

purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any).

non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting any trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable costs of
bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use and present value of any estimated cost
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

ln case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materials used in construction, direct labour, allocoticn
of directly attributable overheads, directly attributable borrowing costs incurred in bringing the itern to wcrking
condition for its intended use, and estimated cost of dismantling and removing the itenr and restoring the site on

hich it is located. The costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds

fr\pm selling items produced while bringing the asset to that location and condition are also added to the cost of self-
nstructed assets.



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3l't March,2022

lf significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, prant and equipment.

3.4.L.2 Subsequent Measurement:

associated with the cost incurred will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced.

and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
recognized expenses of similar nature is derecognized.

3.4.1.3 Deprepiation and Amortization:

the usefullife of the respective assets and the residualvalues in accordance with schedule llof the companies Act,
2013 or as reassessed by the Company based on the technical evaluation.

written down value method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 15 years which is based on
assessment carried out by external valuers and the management believes that the useful lives as considered above
best represent the period over which the respective assets shail be expected in use.

by the management.

method at the rates determined considering the useful lives of 3 years.

which asset is ready for use (disposed of).

appropriate.

3.4.t.4 Disposal of Assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.4.1.5 CapitalWork in progress

capital work-in-progress is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred during construction period, interest on amount
borrowed for acquisition of qualifying assets and other expenses incurred in connection with project implementation in so
far as sueh expenses relate to the period prior to the commencement of commercial production.3.4.2 Bearer Plants

3.4.2.1 Recognition and Measurement:

F Bearer Plants, comprising of mature tea bushes and shade trees are stated in the balance sheet at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).

) Cost of bearer plants includes the cost of uprooting, land development, rehabilitation, planting of Guatemala, planting
of shade trees, cost of nursery, drainage, manual cultivation, fertilizers, agro-chemicals, pruning and infilling etc.

3.4.2.2 Deoreciation:

been determined as the following i . .

Tea Bushes I SO years

in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant
satisfied. Any unamortized part of the previousty



KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE tlM ITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

3.4.2.3 Capita! Work in Progress

Young tea bushes & shade trees, including the cost incurred for procurement of new seeds and maintenance of nurseries,
are carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses under capital work-in-progress. Cost includes the cost of land
preparation, new planting and maintenance of newly planted bushes until maturity. On maturity, these costs are classified
under bearer plants. Depreciation of bearer plants commence on maturity.

3.5 TEASES

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, ifthe contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.5.1 Companv as lessor

Finance Lease

Leases which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item are classified and accounted for as finance lease. Lease rental receipts are apportioned between the
finance income and capital repayment based on the implicit rate of return. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Operating Lease

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a straight line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on
their nature.

3,5,2 Companv ?s lessee

Finance Lease

Finance Leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item, are capitalized at the lower of the fair value and present value of the minimum lease payments at
the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease Payments under such leases are apportioned
between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges
are charged directly to the statement of profit and loss. Lease management fees, legal charges and other initial direct
costs are capitalized.

lf there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease terrn, capitalized
leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Operatins Lease

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assets)

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

lf ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets
are also subject to impairment.

i)
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lease tiabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. ln calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. ln addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of properties, machinery
and equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option). lt also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are
considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS

Revenue is recognized based to the extent it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the company and revenue
can be reliably measured regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment, and excludes taxes &
duties collected on behalf of the Government and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

3.5.1 Sale of Products:

Revenue from sale of products is recognized when the control on the goods have been transferred to the customer. The
performance obligation in case of sale of product is satisfied at a point in time i.e., when the material is shipped to the
customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the contract.

3.6.2 Rental lncome

Rental income from operating lease is recognized on a straight{ine basis over the term of the relevant lease unless the
payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the company's expected
inflationary cost increases.

3.5.3 Other lncome:

lnterest lncome: For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI), interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (ElR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend lncome: Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established.

Other lncome: Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and it is probable

that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

...1
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3,7 EMPTOYEE BENEFITS

3.7.1 Short Term Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services
are provided. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in
respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period.

3.7.2 Other Long Term Employee Benefits

The liabilities for leaves that are not expected to be settled wholly within twelve months are measured as the present value
of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting
period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reportinB period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. Remeasurements as the
result of experience adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in statement of profit and loss.

3.7.3 Post Emplovment Benefits

The Company operates the following post employment schemes:

D Oefined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans such as Provident Fund, Employee State lnsurance etc. are charged to the statement of profit
and loss as and when incurred.

F Defined Benefit Plans

The liabitity or asset recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

The liability recognized for defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting
date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past
seryice costs. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The benefits are discounted using the government securities (G-Sec) at the
end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling, are recognized in other comprehensive income.
Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not
be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss.

3.8 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Governrnent Srants are recognised at their fair value, where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

The grant relating to the acquisition/ construction of an item of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on the same systematic basis as the respective assets are
depreciated over their expected life and are presented within other operating income.

3.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

the spot rates of exchanges at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchanges at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of
onetary assets and liabilities are generally recognized in profit or loss in the year in which they arise except for

,k
-t

change differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use,
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which are included in the cost of those qualifying assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs
on those foreign currency borrowings, the balance is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss within finance
costs.

exchange rate at the transaction date).

3.10 BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs also includes foreign exchange difference to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing
costs.

of the cost of that asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale.

lnterest Rate (ElR) method. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

3.11 FINANC]AL!NSTRUMENTS

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

3.11.1 Financial Assets

All financial assets are initially recognized when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

o Measured at Amortized CosU
o Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FVTOC|);

o Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTpL); and
o Equity lnstruments designated at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive lncome (FWOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

o Measured at Amortized Coqt: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions
are met:

' The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows; and

' The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (ElR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ElR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income
in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This
category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank balances, loans and other financial assets of the
company.

Measured at FVTOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling theI The objective of the business model
financial assets; and

t The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.
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Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. lnterest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment
income.

o Measured at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FWOCI, is classified as FWpL. ln addition, the company
may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FWOCI criteria, as at FWpL.
Debt instruments included within the FWPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FWpL.

o Equitv lnstruments desisnated at FVTOCI: For equity instruments, which has not been classified as FWpL as above,
the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable. ln case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI,
then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to p&1, even on sale of investment.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. lnd AS - 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes impairment loss for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using expected
credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss
experience. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.11.2 Financialtiabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as FWpL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FWpt- are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method,
lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

3.11.3 Offsettingfinancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.
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3.12 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders bythe
weighted avera8e number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders adiusted for the effects of potential equity shares by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

3.13 lmpairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is
treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net
selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the assets.
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units
- cGU).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an improvement in
recoverable amount.

3.14 Provisions, Contingent Liabillties and Contingent Assets

3.14.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

3.14.2 Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations
cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

3 14.3 Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

3.15 Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-curiint assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposalgroup) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

3.15 lntangible Assets

3.16.1 Recognition and Measurement

Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and are stated at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.
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Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. They are
subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses. lnterest
calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in investment
income.

o Meaqured at FW.PL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FWOCI, is classified as FWPL. ln add'ttion, the company
may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FWOCI criteria, as at FWPL.
Debt instruments included within the FWPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Equity instruments which are, held for trading are classified as at FWPL.

o Equitv lnstruments designated at FVTOCI: For equity instruments, which has not been classified as FVTPL as above,
the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made
on initial recognition and is irrevocable. ln case the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI,
then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCl. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to P&1, even on sale of investment.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is

impaired. lnd AS - 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company
recognizes impairment loss for trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction using expected
credit loss model, which involves use of a provision matrix constructed on the basis of historical credit loss
experience. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month
expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

3.1L.2 Financialliabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of- loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FWPL. A financial liability is classified as FWPL if it
is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities
at FWPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit
or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

3.11.3 Offsettingfinancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.
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3.t2 Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders bythe
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the
profit attributable to equity holders adjusted for the effects of potential equity shares by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

3.13 lmpairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An asset is

treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of value in use and net
selling price. Value in use is computed at net present value of cash flow expected over the balance useful lives of the assets,
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (Cash Generating Units
- cGU).

An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified
as impaired. The impairment loss recognized in earlier accounting period is reversed if there has been an improvement in
recoverable amount.

3.t4 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

3.14.1 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet
date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

3.14.2 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or
a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because it is not possible that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the obligations or reliable estimate of the amount of the obligations
cannot be made. The Company discloses the existence of contingent liabilities in Other Notes to Financial Statements.

2 14.3 Contingent Assets

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits. Contingent Assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is

probable,

3.15 Non-Current Assets held for sale

Non-cuirent assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposalgroup) is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposalgroup) and its sale is highly probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised.

3.16 lntangible Assets

3.15.1 Recognition and Measurement

Software which is not an integral part of related hardware, is treated as intangible asset and are stated at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

fi
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3.16.2 Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the cost incurred will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
expenditure is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

3.16.3 Amortization

expected useful life of the assets is significantly different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed
accordingly.

3.16.4 Intangible Assets under Development

lntangible Assets under development is stated at cost which includes expenses incurred in connection with development
of lntangible Assets in so far as such expenses relate to the period prior to the getting the assets ready for use.

3.17 Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce

7.17.t Biological Assets

Biological assets of the company comprise of un-harvested green tea leaves and other minor produce are measured at fair
value less cost of sales. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair value less cost to sell of biological assets is included in
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which it arises.

3.17.2 Agricultural Produce

Agricultural produce harvested from the Company's biological assets are valued at fair value less cost to sell at the point of
harvest. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less cost to sell shall be included in
Statement of Profit & Loss for the period in which it arises.

3.18 Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker of the Company is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments and accordingly is identified as the chief operating decision maker.

The Company has identified single reporting segment i.e. tea.

4 SIGNIFICANTJUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. lnformation about Significant judgements and Key sources of estimation made in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included
in the following notes:

of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. ln

addition, significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in

these estimates relate to actual normal wear and tear that may change the utility of plant and equipment.

arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several factors, including, but not limited
to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee's option to purchase and estimated certainty of
exercise of such option, proportion of lease term to the asset's economic life, proportion of present value of minimum
lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased asset.

obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions

s assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates,

reases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the
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assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a
material impact on the resulting calculations.

Provisions and Conting,encies: The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made
in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) 37, 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets'.
The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events is applied best judgement by management regarding the
probability of exposure to potential loss.

lmpairment of Financial Assets: The Company reviews its carrying value of investments carried at amortized cost
annually, or more frequently when there is indication of impairment. lf recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is accounted for.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts: The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts through appropriate estimations of
irrecoverable amount. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgment and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtfuldebts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value measurement of financial lnstruments: When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The input to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

The fair value of Biological Assets and Agricultural Produce is
determined based on recent transactions entered into with third parties or available market price. Fair valuation of
Biological Asset and Agriculture Produce are based on the market rates published by the industrial body for various grades

from which the fair value of Biological asset and Agriculture Produce are derived.

Uncertainties relatins to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, projects work- in -progress and inventories including biological assets. ln developing the
assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the
Company, as at the date ofapproval ofthese financial statements has used internal and external sources ofinformation
including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on
the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The
impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements.
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KE'HAVA T*ni*,oNs pRrvATE LrMrrED
CIN No. U01132A51999PTC005668

Notes to Financial statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,2ozz

Refer Note
No"

(T in Lakhs)
Non Current

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

As at

31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021TOANS

other Loans and Advances, unsecured, considered good unless
otherwise mentioned

Loan / Advance to Employees

Ledt : Provision for DoubtfulAdvances

Total Loans

91 NoLoansaEdu.fEmdiEctotroroth.roffleEofthecomp.nytithlrsever.llyorrointlywithanyotherp.rcr,noranylaanarrdEfrcmfirms 
orlprivate companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a

0.96

director or a member.

Slon Current

3.80

2.92 2.92

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

OTHER ASSETS

(Unsecured and considered good)
Advances other than Capital Advances

Advances to Suppliers & Service providers

Balances with Government & Statutory Authorities
Prepaid Expenses

lncentive & Subsidy Receivable

Total Other Current Assets

10.1 lncludes Rs.54.23 lacs to Holding Company

11 NON CURRENTTN( ASSETS (NErl
lncome Tax Receivable (Net of provision)

L2 Biologicalfuset other than Bearer plant

Biological Asset other than Bearer plant

Refer Note

No.
13 INVENTORIES

(As valued and certified by the Management|
Finished Goods

Stores and Spares (net of obsolesce)

13.1 lnventories are hypothecated against working capital borrowings ( Refer note no . 47)
13.2 Mode of Valuation (Refer note no. 3.1 sf significant accounting policies)

0.59

0.74

0.36

66.35

L2.54

3.93

9,74

50.92

10,39

4.18

9.73

0.s9 1.10 75.22

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

19.02 L7.5L

L7,5L

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

2.52

52.53

49.92

L3L.L4

4L.L3

t72.27

Refer Note

No.

14.1

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 20211 (ADE RECEIVABLES

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured;
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured;
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk; and
Trade Receivables . credit impaired
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts

Total

14.1 Trade Receivabtes includes

Receivable frorn Related Party

Unbilled Receivables

14.08 4.3L

14.08 43L

14.08 4.3L
Others

Total

Trade Receivable are hypothecated against working capitat borrowings ( Refer note no.47 |

a partneror a dlrGctorora member.

14.08 43L
L4,2

14.3

Trade Receivables

Outstanding from the due date of payminW



.a

KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIM ITED

CIN No. U01132A51999PTC005566
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,zo71z

Particulars

Not due upto 5 months 6months-lyear lyear-2 years 2 years-3 years More than 3 years Tota!
unoilteg KecetvaDles

unqrsputeo
.- constoereo good 064 361 001 0.05 431.- creott tmpareo

Less: credit impared
r otat 0.64 3.61 001 00s 431

Disputed
- considered good

,- creott tmpared

Less: credit impared
Total

Grand total 0.64 361 0.01 0.0s 43t

CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS

Balances With Banks:

ln Current Account

ln Cash Credit Account

Cash in Hand

Refer Note
fUo.

15.1

ts.t Cash and Cash equivalens are hypothecated against working capital borrowings ( Refer note no .47!

- .lhanges in liabilities arising from financing activities
Particulars
Non Current Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debts) (Refer note no.19 )

Current Borrowings

Total llabilities from financing actavities

Particulars

Non Current Borrowings (including current maturities of long term debts) (Refer note no. 19 )
Current Borrowings

Total liabilities from financing activities

OTHERS FINAN CIAL ASSETS

(Unsecured and considered goodl
Deposit with Nabard

Security Deposit

Others Receivable

T7 IQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

17.- rthorised Share Capital

-gqsil$el."
Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each

t7.2 lssued Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 1(E/- each

Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital

Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid-up

L7.3

L7.4

L7"5

L7,6

Non Current

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

As at

31st March 2022

As at

31st March 2021

28.89 26.23

0.57

L.32

0.57

0.9s

26.23

(t in Lakhs)

31st March 2022

No. of Shares Amount
31st March 2021

No. of Shares Amount

100.00

1,00,(x)0 100.m 1,0o,mo 1oo.o0

80,000 80.00 90,000 80.00
80,000 go.m 80,000 8o.oo

., 80,q00 80.00 89,000 80.00
go,m 80.00 80,000 8o.oo

Reconclllatlon ot the numbcr ot sharcs at the bednntnt.nd at the cnd ofthe year

TheG has bscn no chanSr/ mq€menti in numbGr ofsh.resoutst.ndint at th! b€ginning.nd at thr cnd ofthe ycar.

T€rms/ Rlthts attached to Equity Sharer :

the Equity shareholdetr arc €litiblc to receive the remainint .ssets ofth€ company after payment of rll prcfer€ntial amounts, in proportion to their shareholding,

Shareholding Patt.rn wlth respect of Holdlru il Ultimate Holdint Comp.ny

Entirc sharcholding ofthe company is hcE bV M/S. Jmnktoll€e T€a & lndustries Limited (Holding Company)

Dctalls of Equity Sharcholdcrs holdinS more than 5X sherer in thr Company

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Ng. of Shares %,Holdinq tYo. of Shargs % Holding
Equity Shares of T 10/- each fully paid

Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Limited and its nominees

Details of shareholding of Promoters

Joonktollee Tea & lndustries Lirnited and its nominees

80,000 80,000

No. of Shares % Holding % Changes during

the year

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

10.10

0.10

0.66

10.85

o.24

1.66

190

April 1,2021 Cash Flows March 31,2022
63,44 (1,6s) 6t.79

8L2.4L 118.04 930.45

87s.85 115.39 992.24

April 1,2020 Cash Flows March 3L,202L
7.20 s5.24 63 44

833.49 (21.08) 812.4L

840.69 35.16 875.85

17.7

ton<a9

No. of Shares % Holding

80,00080,000



IGSI.IAVA PlAN;AnOilS PRIVATE TIMITED

Clil No, U0U32A5199!lPTCdts555
Not€s to Fin.rclrl Statemcnts as on and fd the yea, Gad€d llst Merch, ZO22

17.8 No Equity shaEs hav. been rcserycd for issue under options and contEcts/ commitments for th€ elG of shar.s/ disinvestmcnt .s at the galance Shect d.ta,
u'9 No Equity shares h.vc blen bouSht back by the company during thr period of 5 yrar precedint thc dat€ as .t which th! Balanca shret is pnp.rcd.
17.10 No slcurities co*ertiblc into Equity/ prcfcrence shaEs havr bren issurd by th! company during thc y!!i
17.11 No calls are unpaid by any Director or Officer of the Comptny during the year.

Reter Nota
No,

18 OTHER EQUTTY

Capital Reserve

Retained Earnings

18.1 CapitalReserve

Balance at the beginning and at the end ofthe year

Retained Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: other comprehensive lncome arising from remeasurement of
defined benefit obligation (net of tax)

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year

Balance at the end ofthe year

)ther Equity

19 BORROWINGS

Secured

Term Loan from Banks

Working CapitalTerm Loan from Banks

Term Loan from other Financiallnstitution
Working Capitalloans repayable on demand

Working Capital loans from banks repayable on demand

Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings

Loan frorn Body Corporates. repayable on demand

The Company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purposes for which it was taken,

As at As at
3lst March 2022 31st March 2021

18.1

18.2
5.00

t,L76.24
5.00

1,331.35

b) Retained Eamings: Retained e.rningr rcpresent tccumulated prcfits earnEd by the company tnd rumainlnt undistributcd.s on date.

1,L9t.24 1,336.35

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

5.00 5.00

1,331.35

11.80

(166.e1)

L,257.95

(Ls.27l

88.77

1,176,24 1,331.35

1,191.24 1,335.35

Non-Current

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

7.45

30.98

L.07

48.33

3.4L

430.45

22.29

500.00

3L2.4t
LL,7O

500.00

5L.74 952.74 824.tL

19.1 Oet.ils ofSecurlty Glv.nfor Loan & Othcrtarmr

Tea Estat. . Thc Loan i3 Epayabb in 26 monthly instalmcnts of Rs,1.85 laca incl. int€re5t is payablc monihly @ 9.2Sf p.a

ii Vehiclc len frcm Brnt pay.blc in @ instalmnts incl.tntcrest @ 7% p.a

iii Vehlclc Loan fbm Financitl Institution p.yabls in rcmrinint 29 instalments of Rs.o.2Z l.s includtnS tntcBt @ 2.6096 p,e

19.2 Refer mt! no. 47 for Iniorm.tion on tho carryint amounts of rinancial and non-finencirl asuts pledgcd as scuritv for th. non{urant .nd currant borrcwin3s
19.3 No amount have been Eu.nntecd by DirGGtoE of th. Company.
19.4 ThlE B no default on b.l.nc. shect d.tc in Epayment of borowints .nd intcrust th.reon.
19.5 Term lotns wlc applicd for thr purpos fq which tha loans wcrc obtained
I )e Company has filed quartedy returns or statements with the banks in lieu ofthe sanctioned rrvorking capihl facilities,which ar. i,l agreement with the books ofaccounl

l? in Lakhsl
\v 

ffi
3tut March 2022 31st M.rch 2021

20 DEFERRED TAX LtABtLtTtES (NETI

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Arising on account of :

Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets

185.32

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

Arising on account of :

Section 438 of lncorne-tax Act

Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forward Business Losses

Others

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Netl
72.75

112,57

virtually ertain.

L89.44 185.32

34.44

47.80

0,30

37.24

35.21

0.30

Movement ln deferred tax asset and deferred tax llabilitles

Particularc As at

lst April. 2021

Recognired in Recognized in Other
Statement of Profit & Comprehensive !ncome

As at
31st March, 20?2

Deferred lncome Tax Liabilities

Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets

Deferred lncome Tax Assets

Items u/s 438 of the lncome Tax Act, 1961

Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forward Business Losses

Others

185.32 4L2 t89.44

18s.32 4L2

1.34

t2.s9

(4.141 34.44

47.80

0.30

72.75 13.93 14.141 82.54

106.90
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KESHAVA PLANTATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

elN [to. U01132AS1999PTC005G60

Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March ,zoz220.2 Movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities the year ended 31st March,ZOZI,

Particulars
Recognized in Recognized in Other

Statement of Profit & Comprehensive lncome
As at

lst Aprif 2020
As at

31st March, 2021

Property, Plant & Equipments & lntangible Assets

Deferred lncome Tax Assets

Items u/s 43B of the lncome Tax Act, 1961
Unabsorbed Depreciation/ Carried Forr,vard Business Losses

Others

219.05 (33.73) L85.32

33.15 {1,,27l, 5.36 37,24

35.21

0.30

3s'ox 
3:31

a.rl 10.771 5.36 72.75

deferred trx laibilitles Gl.te to incomr tax levied by the samc taxation authority.

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade Payables for goods and services

Total outstanding dues of creditors to micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditor to other than micro enterprises and smalt enterprises

1.03

37.43

10.95

45.83

s6.78

Outstanding from the due date of payment as on 31st March 2022
Less than 1 Year

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than nicro enterprises and smalt enterprises

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises

Total outstandinB dues of creditors other than micro enterpiises -anA srn-alt

Particulars Outstanding from the due date of payment as on 31st March 2021
Not due tess than 1 Year 1 year-2 years 2 years-3 years More than 3 years Total

Unbilled Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatt enterprises 6.47 4.44 004 10.95
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smali 12.05 32.65 1.13 45.83
ursputed dues ot micro enterprises and small enterprises
ulsputeo oues ot credators other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
ota 18.52 37.09 t.L7 55.78

22.L

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL TIABIIITIES

Employee Related Liability

Amount Payable for Capital ltems
lnterest Accrued on Borrowings

Creditors for other Liability

These includes liabilty for Utilities and audit fee

2i . ROV|SIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity

Bonus

24 OTHER LIABIL]TIES

Statutory Dues Payable

Defe rred Gove rnment Subsidy

As at As at
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

28.68

L5.2L

4.72

10.94

31.16

17.s4

L3.73

8.59

7t.02

Non Current
As at As at

31st March 2022 3lst March 2021

As at
31st March 2022

As at
31st March 2021

tzt.28 131.1s

28.8L 25,72

LzL.28 131.15 28.8t 25.72

({ in Lakhs)
Non Current

Asat Asat Asat
31st March 2022 31st March 2021 3lst March 2022

tuat
31st March 2021

20.57 9.73

17.38

0.47

15.62

20.57 9,73 17.85 L5.62

59.5s



25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Finished Goods-Tea

Other Operating Revenues

Jncentives & Subsidies

lnsurance and Other Claims (Net)

a

KESHAVA PIANTATIONS PRIVATE TIMITED

CIN No. U01132AS1999PTC005668
Notes to Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 31st March ,2022

Refer Note

No.

25.1 Grant sanctioned by Government of Assam against Replantation

GoegraphicalSales

lndia

Outside lndia

OTHER INCOME

lnterest lncome
On Security Deposits

On Others

lnterest Subvention on Working Capital

Other Non Operating lncome
Excess Liabilities and Unclaimed Balances written back
Miscellaneous lncome

Changes in Fair value of Biological assets

lnteGst Subvention on rcrkin! BPit.lfor th! financlal ylar 202G2o21frcm Gwemment of A$am as per rctillcation datcd 6th Novrmber, 2020

COST OF MATERIAT.S CONSUMED

Purchase ofGrcan Leaf

CHANGES II{ INVEIITORIES OF FINIS+IED GOODS. fiOO(-IN-TRADE AT{D WORK-IN.PROGRESS

lnventorl€s .t thc cnd of the yrtr
Tea

lnvcntorl€s at th€ beSlnnlnt of thc y.at
T!a

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries & Wages
-ontrlbution to Provident Funds and Others

-ontribution to Gratuity Fund

Staff Welfare Expenses

Less: Amount Capitalised

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

1,033.91

0.47

0.06

1,033.91 992.06

1,033.91

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

1.56

0.39

9,70

3.54

t.26
3.93

L.76

0.53

0.23

2.52

26.L

27

514

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

52,53 L3t.L4
52.53 I3L,L4

131.14 15.65

t3t.t4 15.55

78.61 (11s.491
',.

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

52t.7L

59.45

2L.O7

43.89

463,48

52.08

17.33

42.29

il6.L2
4.41

575.18

6.18

64t.7t

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

FINANCE COST

lnterest Expenses

To Banks On Working Capital Loans

On Corporate Loans & Others

To Financial lnstitution

Other Borrowing Costs

Other Financial Cha rges

Others

Less: Amount Capitalised

32.3L

60.00

0.6s

2.48

0.50

30.11

60.00

0.95

3.50

95.94 94.56

0.75

95.94 93.81

1,033.91

1,034.39

Charte
* Accc.r r: r
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KESHAVA PTANTATIONS PRTVATE tIM ITED

Cl N No. U01 132AS1999PTC005666

Notes to Financial statements as on and for the year ended 31st March,zo2z

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTTZATION EXPENSES

On Property, Plant and Equipment

On lntangible Assets

OTHER EXPENSES

M an ufacturing Expenses

Stores, Spare Parts & Packing Materials Consumed
Power & Fuel

Cultivations

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Repairs to Other Assets

Less: Amount Capitalised

Selling and Administration Expenses

Freight & Cartage

Commission, Brokerage & Discount

Rates & Taxes

Rent

lnsurance

Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expense

Auditors' Remuneration -

Audit Fees

Loss on sale/Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment

Director Sitting Fees

Provision for Doubtful Advances

Other Miscellaneous Expenses

TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax

Deferred Tax

33'l Reconclliatlonof.$imatedlncom!t.xaxp€n*atstatutorylncomctaxrat.toiffiomctrxaxprnsarcponedinstatementofTotalComprehensivrlncom

Prcfit before in@m! tax axpense

Statutory lncome Tax ratr.
Estimated lncome Tax Expense

Tox cfract of odjwtmcnts to t@ncib .xpact d ln@me tqx .xpanic to
rcported lncome tax expeffi
Due to Drferrcd t.x on bGincss lossas not consi.rced
refercd Tax on tax holidry pen'od roversed

,empt lncomq
'-bth"o

ln@me tax !xp.n$ ln Statement of proftt & loss
t Applic.bb Statutory lncore Tax Etc fq FislY€ar 2022 & 2021 b 2896

OTHER COM PREHENSIVT-INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans

Less: Tax expense on the above

Earning per Shares

Nominal Valuc of Equity Shares (Rs.)

Profit attributed to the Equity shareholders of the Company

Weighted averate number of equity shares

Basis and diluted earning per shares (Rs.)

There are no dilutive equity shares in the Company.

R in Lakhs)
t
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

93.68

1.30

95.30

3.18

94.98 98.48

For the year ended For the year ended
3Lst March 2022 31st March 2021.

9.6V

79.15

87.85

15.14

13.82

L.72

11.79

71.O5

84.90

15"35

LL.O7

2.3!
207.35

t.62
L96,47

7.02

205.73

14.99

4.46

1.87

1.50

2,99

2L.79

1.50

t.4L

0.75

23.33

L3.74

2.08

4.L8

1.50

3,79

19.85

1.50

9.67

0.60

2,92

15.51

264.79

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

, (e.81) (,12.e6)

, (e.8u , (32.e51

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

(176.72l}

260/"

55.81

260/o

(4s.es)

0.23

10.56

15.10

10.25

14.51

4.81

19.49

13.19

9.98

36.14 47.47

I9.811 (32.s51

For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021

(1s.e4)

4.L4

20.53

(s.35)

111.801

(11.80l- ts.zt

--g

35

100

88.77

0,80

(208.64) 110.96



TESHAVA PI+ANTATIONS PIIVATE UMITED
CIN No. U0U32AS1999PICq,5566

Nates to FinanchlSt.tem.nts as on and forthe ye.r ended 3l5t March,2022
(l ir Lakh8l

36 Contintentllabilities, ContingentAiiets &Commitm.nt
The Company does not have any Contingent LiabilitiEs & ContinsentAssetr.

36.1 Commitments

Sl. No. Particulars
As at

31s March
202t

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (net of advances)

37

38

39

Loans or advances (repayahle on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment| to specified persons

Du.lng theyearendedMar.h 31,2022 the Companydid not provide.ny Lorns or advanes whlch remains outstanding (repayable on demand orwithoutipecifying ilytermso. period of
repamentl to soecified persons INil as on March 31.20211
Reletlonrhip with StMk oft Compenles
The Company did not have any t,anstion with @mpanies rtruck offdurint the yea, ended March 31,2022 and alroforthe yearended March 31,2021.
Eemml P.op.rty held

rO Dkcloiure in [l.tion to undliclosrd lncome
The Comparry dGs nothave ily ruch tranractim whichis trotre.orded in the h@ks ofa@ounts tiatharbeen surrender.d oa disclosed ai in@me duringthe ycar ended March 31, mZ2 rnd
March 31,2021 in the tax assessments under the lnomc TaxA.t, 1961 (such as, search d suiley o, any otherrelevantprovisionr of the lncome Tax Act, 1951,

4l Wlful Def.ultrr
Company irnot a declared wilful defaulter byany bank or finilclal institution o. other leoder.

42 R3tlitr.tion ot chartei orsllrfaciloo with RegistBr o, Comparles (ROC)

Thc Company d@s not hav€ any chartes ff satltfactifi whlch ii yet to be r€8istc,ed with ROC beyond the statutorv period.
4l Utlllr.tlon ofSg@wed tundi end rharc prcmlum

Company (Ultimate Beneficiarie5) or{b) provide any8uirantee. security o, the llke to or on behalfo, the Ultidat. Beneficiaries.

a4 Crypto Cur.ncy
The Company hai not traded ar inve*ed in C,yptocurency or Virtual cu.rency du.int the y.a, ended Mnch 31,2022 and March 31, 2021

t5
The company has @mplied with the ptovisions of number of layers prescrlbed under clau* E7 of sectjon 2 of the Act read with Campanies (Bestrictlon on number of l,ayeE) f,u16, 2Ol7

{5 Elementr ol Brtlo

Ratio Numerator Denominator
For the year

ended March
31,202L

Yt sleof
change

Reason for
Variance

Cunent ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 021 o26 -19.84

Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholde/s Eguity o.79 0.62 27.22

Debt Serviee Coverage ratio

Earnings before interest, depreciation

and taxes tProfit after Tax r lnterest +

Depreciation + other adjustments like

loss on sale of Fixed assets etc)

Debt service {lnterest & Lease

Payments + Principal

Repayments)
011 011 056

Profit for the period/year Average Shareholder's Equity -2 09 111 -288.03

Decrease in

selling price per

kC of tea and

rncrease tn per

day wages

during the

currennt year

has reduced the

profit margins in

comparison to
last year.

lnventory Turnover ratio Cost of Goods Sold Average lnventory 10.02 8.57 16.82
Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Net Credit Sales Avg. Accounts Receivable ttz.M 99.40 13.12

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio Net Credit Purchase Average Trade Payables 2.05 1.55 32.25

credit period for
making

payment to
suooliers.

Net Gpital Turnouer Ratio Net Sales Capital (Current Assets - Current -1.1.9 -1.35 11 83

Net Profit ratio Net Profit {PAT} Net Sales -0,16 0.09 -280.41 Decrease in

selling price per

kg of tea and

rncrease rn per

day wages

during the

currennt year

has reduced the

profit margins in

comparison to
last year.

Return on Capital Employed Earning before interest and taxes

Capital Employed (Tangible Net

Worth + Total Debt + Deferred

Tax Liability)

{.02 004 -152.31

Since the Company has no lnvestment as at March ?1, ?O22 and March 3L,7021, the ratio of return on lnvestment has not been disclosed.
AsseB pledged as security
The amounts of assets as security for current & non-current borrowings are as follows:

Particulars Refer Note Ng.

eurrent
Financial assets

First and Second charge

Trade Receivables

Non-financial assets

Firrt and Second charge

lnventories
Total current assets pledged as recurity
Non-curent

ed ar eecurity

14

13

5

6

14.08 4.31

14.08 431
102.45 772.27

102.45 t72,77
116.53 175.58

*
2,341.41.

22"O8

2,344.94

59.22

2,363.49 2,404.16

2,480,O2 2,580.74El

/
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49,1

Disclosurc il rcqulled under the Miclo, small and Medium Entcrpdses devclopmcntect, 2006, to the .rtcot a3certainrd, and .5 per notification number GsR 679 (El dat€d
4th September, 2015

DlsclGuro puEuantto lndian Accountlog Standard. lg,Employea Blndltr,

Oelimd Co0trtbutlon Plao:

the said schem€ thc comp.ny h GquiGd to contribute e tpccific perc.ntale of pay rcll corts in crprct ofcliiibb €mployees to the Bti..ment b€nlfit sch€me tofund thc beneflts,

The amount rccoSnized.s an lxpense forthe Oefined Contribution plans aG as under:

Sl. No. Particulars
For the year ended

31st March 2022

For the year ended

31st March 2021

a Provident Fund 59.45 52.08

49.2 Defined 8en€rlt Phnr

The followinS ac the typcs ofdeflned bencfit plan5

'8.2.1 Glatuity Plan

indegendent trust for the qualifyln8 .mPloyees. The scheme providGs for a lump sum payment to vestcd employees upon r€Urement, dsath whilc ln .mployment or on termln.tion of
emploYmEnt of an amount equival€nt to 15 days salary payable forGach mpleted yearof $ryice. Vestint 6curs upon compl€tion of S yeaE of continuous sryhc.

'19.2.2 Rirk Exp$ure

Thrcu8h it5 d.fined benetit plans. thr company ls exp6.d to. numblr ofri5k, the most slinlflent ofwhich tc detailed bGlow:

lnterest rate risk The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on tovernment bonds. lf bond yields fall, the defined
benefit obligation with tend to increase.

Salary lnflation risk Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

Demographic risk This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal,
disability and retirement. The etfect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight fonruard and
depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. lt is important not to overstate
withdrawals because in the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short career employee typically costs less per year
as compare to long service employee.

Reconcillatlon of the nrt d€tlned beocrlt (.r5.tl/ lirbility
Thr following table shils a Econcili.tlon from th€ op€nint bal.ncls to th! closlnt balaner for thc nrt d€tincd buefit (ass!t)/ liability and lt5 componcnts:

( t in Lakhsl

Particulars Gratuity
202t-22 2020-2L

Net defined benefit asset/(liability) at the beginning of the year

Service Cost

Net interest on net defined benefit (liability)/asset
Amount recognised in OCI

Employer contributions
Net defined benefit asset/(liability) the year

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations
The following table shows a reconciliation to defined benefits obligations:

Sl. No. Particulars
As at

31st March

2t022

As at
31st March

202t
Thc principal amount and the interest due thercon remaininjunf

The amount of interest paid bV thc buyer in terms of5ection 15 ofthe Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Dlvelopment Act, 2006, along wlth
the.mount ofthe payment mad! to the supplier beyond th. appointrd dav durini !.ch.ccountint year.

Th€ amount ofinterest duc and payable forthe period ofdel.y in making p.vment but without adding the inteEst spccified undlrthe Micro, small
and Medium Entlrpriscs OevelopmentAct, 2OOo

The amount of interest aeruld and rcmaining unpaid at th€ end ofeach arcounilnt ylar

Thc emgunt offurther interest remaininS due and payable even ln the succeeding years, until srch datewheo thc interest dues abovr are actually
paid to th! 5mall enterprise, for thr Purpose ofdisallowance ofa dcductibl€ expendituE undqr scction 23 of th€ Micrc, Sm.ll .nd Mrdium
Enterprises Dselopm.nt Act, 2006

1.03 10.95

Particulars

n

Gratuity
202t-22 2020-2t

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current Service Cost

lnterest Cost on the defined benefit obligation
Curtailment (Credit)/ Cost

Settlement (Credit)/ Cost
Past Service cost- plan amendments

Acquisitions (Cred it)/ Cost
Actuarial (gain )/loss-experience
Actuarial (gain )/ loss demographic assumptions
Actuarial Gain )/loss-financial assumptions
Benefits paid directly by the Company
Benefits paid from plan assets

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

t64.t4
12.91
lo.z9

(10.s5)

(5.081

(16.s1)

153.79

732.39

9.94

8.54

21.60

1.s8

(s.s1)

164.14



\-.

49.2.5 Reconciliation of the plan Assets

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the plan Assets and its components:

49.2.6 Expenses recognized in profit or loss

49.2.7 Remeasuremets recognzied in other eomprehensive income

Particulars Gratuity
202L-22 2020-21

Actuarial (gain)/ Loss on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate

(rz.oc;

1.10

23.18
(2.ssl

1s.e4) 20.63
49.2.8 Major Categories of plan Assets

plan.ssets is basd on the rs5umcd rate ofEturn prcvidcd by Companl/s actuary.

49;2,9 Actu.rlal A$umptlons

Particulars Gratuitv
2o2t-22 I ZOZO-ZL

Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate

WithdrawalRate

7.00

5.00

lndian Assured

Lives Mortality
(2006-08) utt

Age from 20-40

:2.Q0% Age

from 40-60:
t.oo%

market.

an.lvsis ofthe benefit lavmants i5 as followsi

Expected benefits payment for the year ending on 202L-22

Gratuitv
7.15
3.28

25.13
15.7s

10.34

77.11

'19.2'12 
Thr companv.xp€ct, to contribute I NtL (prrvio$ vear I NtL t.cs) to itr lEtuity fund in 2022-29

49.2,13 S.$ltMt! Analyslr

deflnrd blrtfit obll8ation W tha amounts showo belw:

Particulars Gratuitv

-__2o2t-22 I ZOZO-ZL
Effect on DBO due to l% increase in Disiount Rate

Effect on DBO due to Lo/" decrease in Discount Rate
Effect on DBO due to 1% increase in Salary Escalation Rate

(13.se)

t6.o2
16.02

(13.83)

Particulars Gratuity
202t-22 2020-21

Fair Value of Plan fusets at the beginning of the year
lnterest lncome on Plan Assets

Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate
Employer Contributions
Benefits Paid

Fartie ulars Gratuity
202t-22 2020-2L

Current Service Cost

lnterest Cost

lnterest lncome on Plan Assets

12.9r

10.29
(2.13)

9.94
8.54
1.ls)

21.o7 17.33



50 Appllc.bilityofcsR .
The company is not gettint covcrcd undcr sec 135 of the companiE Act 2013 and ar such the provlsions of CsR arc not applicable for the companv.

51 lel.ted P.rty DbchcuEs

51.1 Nam€ of tl|e relat.d prtles .nd dricrtptlm ot rclatlonrhlp

HoldinS Company

- J@nklolleo Te. & lndustrias Limited (Holding Company)

- The Cshin Malabar Estates And lndustries Limited (Associate of Holdint Company)

- PEnil lnfEdev Co.Pvt.Limited (Fellow Subsidiary Company)
KcI Milalemcnt Pe6mnel
Manej Kumar Daga-Director

Sayanslddha Oas - Di@tor
ShaBd Bagree - Director

51.2 Smmary of trariactlom wlth th! Glatcd partles

51.3 Summary of Closing Balance Outstanding with the related parties

Particulars
Holding

Comoanv
Associate of Holding Company Key Management Personnel

3L.03.2022 31.03.2021 3L.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(100.00)

23.63

29.37

(28.00)

0.75 0.60

Particulats Holding Company Associate of Holding Company

Advance Given

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 3L.O3.2022 31.03.2021

64.24 45.85

51.4 M.lstcms and condltlons of tEnsacdqs wlth relatcd partlcr

Transactions with related parties arc carried outin thc normal couEe of business and are made on tcrms cquivalent to thoie that prcvail in arm's length transactions.

selment R€Foltlrg

on the manaterent .pprcach as dsflned in lnd AS 108, ths Chiof Operating oecisbn MakGr evaluatcs the Company's prrformanc! b.sed on only on€ setment i... manufacturint Tea.

Fair Value Measurement

Categories of Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021

The follflin! Customers individuallv accounted for more than 1096 of the r!v!nucs from extrmal customeE during thc yeer ended March 31,2022 and March 31, 2021.

Name of the Customer
3tst

March,2022
31st

March.2021

Pranjivan J Shah

Venus Tea Corporation

47,72%

83A%

62.53%

14.34%

Particulars

FinancialAssets

Trade Recetvables

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Loans to Employees

Other Financial Assets

Total Financlal Assets

Financial tiabilities
Borrowings

Trade Payables

Other Financial Libilities

Total Financial Liabilities

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

FWPL FVOCI
Amortized

Cost
FVTPt FVOCr

Amortized
Cost

14.08
10.86

0.88

30.78

4.3L
1.90

0.96

27,75

56 50 t4.92

992.24

38.46

59.55

1.090.2s 1,003.65



54 falrValues of Finilclal Ass€ts and Financlal Llabilitiet measured at Amortlred Cort .
54.1 The following is thc comparison bv class of the ca.rying amounts and fair v.lue of th! Company's fin.ncial instrum!nt5 that arc m!.surcd at amortized cost;

Farticulars
31st March 2022

[:;;.,,.Carrying Amount Fair Value

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial tiabilities

14.08
10.86
0,88

707A

14.08
10.85
0.88

30.78

4,31
1.90
0.95

27.75

4.31
1.90

0.95
27.75

55.60 s5-50 a4-q2 14.q

992.24
38.45
59 s5

992.24
38.46
s9.55

875.85
56,78
7t.oz

875.8s
55.78
7L.Oz

1.O90.2 1-OqO-2s 1.003.6s 1.003.6s

amqunts larlclv dur to the short-term matudties ofthese instrumcnts.

values.

carrying valuc subiecttg adJustments madc for transaction cort,

55 f.lrValuc Hienrchy

55,1 Blolotlcal assets othsr than bearer planti

r€l€vant obseruable inputs.

Blologlc.l Arretr mea3urcd at tai, Valu€ lerr cort to sell

As at 31st M.rh 2022 ild 31st March 2021

55.2 Durin3 thc y€ar €nded March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 th!re are no tEnsf€B bBtwaln lwsl 1, lcvll 2 and hvel 3.

55.2.1 Valuation Techniqu€

unharylstcd usin8 plwking aveEies ofvarious Gstate5.

55.3 Explil.tlon to thc talr v.lue hi.rffihy

mssutement s a whole, Thr valu.tion of rquity instrumcnts are based on level 3 inputs and valuation of unh.rstld tea leaf .nd timbar plantation ar bascd on level 2 inputs as par th!
hi€rarchy mntbned in thc Accountiry Policiet,

56 Finilci.l Rlsk Managem.nt

mitlgatlon plaos ar€ as follows:

56,1 CrcdltBlsk

which has trken into account historh.l credit loss expericncc based on which no qpected crcdit los5 ilsk has been stimated.

Uquldlty Rlsk

Thr Company dat€rminss its liquidity Equlrcmrnt ln the short, mcdlum.nd lon3 t!m.Thi5 i5 donc bydEwints up 66h forocast forshort tcrm and lonS trrm nr€ds.

tanenlly his certrin undr.wn cradit facilithi which can bc a$rsscd ai and wh€n r€qulred; such cr8dit hcilitits .re Gvbwed at caular basis.

56.2.1 Maturity Analysis for financial liabilities

Non FinancialAssets
Biological Assets other than Bearer Plant
- Unharvested Tea Leaf

Total Non Financial Assets

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st March 2022

Terrn Loan from Bank

Term Loan from other financial institution

Other financial liabilities



The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 31st Mrrch 2021

Fartie ulars
On Demand

Less than 5
months

6 months to 1

vear
1 years to 5

vears

More than 5
vears

Total

Borrowings

Term Loan from Bank 9.67 48.33 58.00
Term Loan from other financial institution 098 1.05 34L 5.44
Short term loan 500.00 500.00
Working Capital loans repayable on demand 3L2.47 3L2.4t

Trade payables 56.78 55.78
Other financial liabilities 31.23 39.80 71.03

Tota! 843.64 97.56 to.v2 5L.74 1,003.55

be€n dctarmined with rcference to conditions cxistint at the rcportint dat .

position of the company.

55.3 MarketRirk

56,3.1 CommodltyRlsl

areas, and fluctuation ofsllin! price otfinished toods vir. tea, coffse and rubblr du! to increas in rupply/availability,
The Company mana8es the abwe financial risks in the followint mrnnerl
l) sufficiut inventory lwels ofchemkals, fcrtilisers and othr. inputs arc malntalned s that timshcorNtivc.ction can bt taken in es3 ofadvcEe wlathGrconditicns.
ii) Slighth higher levcl ofcontumable stores viz. packinS m.t3rials, coal and HSD ar€ maintainGd ln order to miti8rte financial .isk.risint frcm lotistics prcblems.

56.3.2 lntenstRate Rlsk

teruc.

exprcted business requirerents for such fundi,
a Exposure to interest rate risk

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Borrowings at floating rate

Borrowings at fixed rate
479.83

5L2.4t
370.47

505.44

992.24 875.8s

Curency RisI

The Company hrs ng cxposuc to foEitn exchant! during the tin.ncial yrar. Th!rc wcG no forcign exchange derivative contracts dealt bV thG Comp.ny.

Capital M.na8lment

equivalert5)to Gquity rrtio is used to mnitor capital.

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

Sensitivity
Analyris

lmpact on
Sensitivity
Analysis

lmpact on

Profit before
tax

Other Equity
Profit before

tax
Other Equity

lnterest Rate lncrease by
lnterest Rate Decrease bv

0.50% 2.40 2.401 050% (1.8s) (1.8s)

0.50% 2.40 2.40 o50% 18s 185

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Net Debt

TotalEquity
Net Debt to Equitv Ratio

992.24

t,261.24
0.79

875,85

1,416.35

0.62



been creeted forthc vear ended 315t March, 2022. Furthcr, cxiiting proviiion ofdcferrcd tax ln respect oftax holidav p€riod has been reve6ld.

assumptions and rstimates may vary in future due to imp.ct of pandemic.

5l PEvious ylarfi8urcs have beln Etrouped / rearEng.d whrrcwr necessa,y, to confirm to the curr€nt period's classifk.tion,

The Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
As per our report of even date annexed. For and on behalf of Board of Directors


